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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHREE INVESTMENT AND FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shree Investment and Finance Company Limited (referred to
as the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July
2024), and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of cash
flows, statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
positien of the Company as at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024), its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with ICAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbcok of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

a) Interest Recognition
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Interest income of the Company has to be Our audit procedures included:
recognized on an accrual basis and following
the Interest Income Recognition Guidelines
2019 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).
According to these guidelines, for loans and
advances overdue by more than three months
and up to 12 months, collateral testing is
required. If the outstanding amount is within
the collateral value, then the interest income is

We obtained a clear understanding of the process
of accrual of interest income on loans and
advances in the Core Banking System of the
Company.

* Regarding the fair value of the collateral, we relied
on the latest available valuation of the collateral

PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co. is a member of PKF Global, the network of member firms of PKF In!errfa_tional l.imiteq, each of
which is a separate and independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or
inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm(s).
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recognized; if not, then the accrual of such
interest income is suspended. However, for
loans overdue beyond 12 months, the accrual
of interest income is suspended irrespective of
the value of collateral.

The manual intervention is required for the
interest recognition process. Hence, it creates
a risk of improper application of guidelines and
determination of fair value of the collateral.
This may affect recognition of interest income
of the Company. Therefore, we have
considered it as a Key Audit Matter.

T R ST T W)

collateral as per NRB Income Recognition
Guidelines 20189.

* Test-checked booking of interest income with the

manual computation.

b) Identification and provisioning for non-performing assets (‘NPAs’) in relation to the

Company

Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at 31 Ashad 2081: NPR 5,605 million;
Provision for NPA as at 31 Ashad 2081: NPR 130 million.

(Refer Schedule 4.6, 4.7 and Note 3.3.5 of Schedule 3 to the financial statements)

Key Audit Matter

The Nepal Rastra Bank (‘NRB") guidelines on
the recognition of Interest Income and Unified
Directives prescribes the prudential norms for
Income Recognition, Identification and
Classification of Non-Performing Advances,
and Provisioning for Loans and Advances.

The Company is also required to apply its
judgement to determine the identification and
provision required against NPAs by applying
quantitative as well as qualitative factors.

The risk of identification of NPAs is affected
by factors like stress and liquidity concerns in
certain sectors.

The provisioning for identified NPAs s
estimated based on ageing and classification
of NPAs, recovery estimates, the value of
security and other qualitative factors and is
subject to the minimum provisioning norms
specified by NRB and impairment of risk
assets as per carve out provided by ICAN.

The identification of NPAs and provisioning
for advances require a significant level of
estimation and given its significance to the
overall audit including possible observation by
NRB which could result in disclosure in the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our key procedures included, but were not limited to,
the following:

We understood the process & controls, and tested
the design and operating effectiveness of key
controls, including IT-based controls, focusing on
the following:

a) Approval of new lending facilities against the
company's credit policies and the performance
of annual loan assessments.

b) Controls over the monitoring of credit quality
which amongst other things included, the
monitoring of overdue reports, drawing power
limits, pending security creation.

c) ldentification and classification of NPAs in line
with  NRB's circular, the impairment
requirement as per carve out on NFRS 9
provided by the Company and certain
qualitative aspects; and

d) Assessment of adequacy of NPA provisions
being the higher of NRB norms and carve out
on NFRS 9 provided by ICAN.

To test the identification of loans with default events
and other triggers, we selected a sample of
performing loans and independently assessed
whether there was a need to classify such loans as
NPAs.

Performed inquiries with the credit and risk
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The risk of deficit in collateral as required by departments to ascertain if there were indicators of
NRB Directives 2 for the credit facility stress or an occurrence of an event of default in a
provided to various borrowers which may particular loan account or any product category
cause financial loss to the company. which needed to be considered as NPA.
Considering the significance of the above = Held specific discussions with the management of
matter to the financial statements, the the Company on sectors where there is perceived
heightened regulatory inspections and the credit risk and the steps taken to mitigate the risks
significant auditor attention required, we have to identified sectors.

identified this as a Key Audit Matter for the

i . = Asper i i i i
current year's audit. per our review of the impairment calculation, we

noted that the impairment is calculated higher of
the following prescribed method:

i. NRB Regulation;

ii. NFRS Pronouncement with specific
reference to Carve out on NFRS-9
provided by ICAN.

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Company for the previous year ended 16 July 2023, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 12 December
2023.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, including the report of the Board of Directors, but does not include financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report including the report of the Board of
Directors is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the statement of financial position as at 15
July 2024 (31 Ashad 2081), the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies have prepared in the format prescribed
by the Nepal Rastra Bank Unified Directives No. 4 and in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2063 and Section 59 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company; and proper books of account as
required by law including relevant records relating to the preparation of the aforesaid financial statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records of the Company. In
our opinion, the returns received from the branches were sufficient for the purpose of the audit though
these statements were independently not audited.

In our opinion, the returns received from the branches were sufficient for the purpose of the audit though
these statements were independently not audited.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Company has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance with the
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across cases where the Board
of Directors or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the
accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Company and violated any
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the
Company, its depositors and investors.

— 0 Aot

Shashi Satyal
Partner

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

124 Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 3 December 2024

UDIN No: 241204CA0C008HN2AR
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Shree Investment and Finance Co. Ltd.

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

Reporting Entity

Shree Investment & Finance Company Limited (SIFCO or the Company), is a limited liability publicly listed
company registered with Office of Company Registrar in Nepal in the year 1994 (2051 BS). Registered
office of the Company is situated at Dillibazar, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company carries out commercial
Banking activities and other financial services in Nepal under the license from Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB),
The Central Company of Nepal as “Ga Class” (Class C) licensed financial institution.

SIFCO offers a wide range of banking services in Nepal which includes deposits, loans and advances,
remittance, e-Banking, mobile Banking, etc.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards
Board (ASB), Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in
the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2080.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No.
4 of NRB Directives, 2080.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise
stated.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The Company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar. The
corresponding dates for the English calendar are as follows:

Relevant Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Financial Statement Date / Period Date / Period
Comparative SFP* Date 31 Ashadh 2080 16 July 2023
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2079 - 31 Ashadh 2080 17 July 2022 - 16 July 2023
First NFRS SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2076 16 July 2019
Current NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2080 - 31 Ashadh 2081 17 July 2023 - 15 July 2024

*SFP =Statement of Financial Position

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024) have been
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on Mansir 18, 2081
(December 3, 2024) and have recommended for approval of shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.
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2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been
rounded to the nearest rupee except indicated otherwise.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Management of the Company has made judgments, estimations and assumptions
which affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses that is required for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). The Management believes
that the estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Necessary revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which such
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Any revision in accounting estimate is recognized prospectively in present and future
periods as required under NAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Error. Significant estimates, assumptions and judgments used in applying accounting
policies which have material effect in financial statements are:

Impairment on loans and advances (Higher of provision for loan loss calculated as per NRB
Directive and Impairment loss calculated as per NFRS based on carve out issued by ICAN to
be mandatorily implemented till carve out period).

2.5 Changesin Accounting Policies

The Company is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with
NFRS. The accounting policies are applied consistently; changes, if any, are disclosed with
the financial impact to the extent possible.

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately
suitits circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make
judgments in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or
assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later
be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate. The accounting
policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements
and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

2.6 New Standards Issued but not yet Effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS
39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments
— Disclosures have been applied. NRFS 9 has been applied only for the classification
of Financial Instruments.

A new Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS 2018) has been pronounced by the ICAN on
11th Ashadh 2077. The NFRS 2018 contains some new standards with amendments to the
existing standards.

3% | ot anfifer ufdaeT Roco/0c?



2.7

31t ScaEdice UUS BiSollcd . fa.

¥ Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.
(AT W7 qpare T A SIS W )

NFRS 2018 introduces the new standard as mentioned hereunder which will be
applicable from the date mentioned below
Standard Applicable date

NFRS 17 16 July 2024

New Standards and Interpretation not adopted

There have been, and are expected to be, a number of significant changes to the
Company’s financial reporting as a result of amended or new accounting standards,
specifically IFRSs, that have been or will be issued by the IASB. These standards will be
applicable when adopted in Nepal. The most significant of these are as follows:

2.7.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’-Impairment

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued by the IASB in July 2014 and effective
internationally for the financials beginning on or after 1 January 2018. ASB Nepal
endorsed NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with some exceptions, mainly in the
impairment. Currently, the carve out issued by the Accounting Standard Board of
Nepal has been used forimpairment on loans and advances. The requirement of IFRS
9 is the Expected Credit Loss Model.

Expected Credit Loss Model (ECL) of Impairment

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is a forward-looking model. The ECL estimates
are unbiased, probability-weighted, and include supportable information about past
events, current conditions, and forecasts of future economic conditions.

These have been issued under NFRS 2018 and are applicable from Fiscal Year 2081-82.

Under the general approach, IFRS 9 recognizes three stage approach to measure
expected credit losses and recognize interest income.

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - No significantly increased credit risk financial instruments
that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition require,
at initial recognition a provision for ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months (12-month ECL). For those financial assets
with a remaining maturity of less than 12 months, a Probability of Default (PD) is used
that corresponds to the remaining maturity. Interest will be calculated on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset before adjusting for ECL.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - Significantly increased credit risk in the event of a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a provision is required for the lifetime
ECL representing losses over the life of the financial instrument (lifetime ECL). Interest
income will continue to be recognised on a gross basis.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — Defaulted Financial instruments that move into Stage 3 once
creditimpaired and purchases of creditimpaired assets will require a lifetime provision.
Interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset less ECL.

The management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements if
the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is introduced.
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Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year,
the Company considers the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is
material. Various internal and external factors have been considered in determining the
discount rate to be applied to the cash flows of the Company.

Reporting Pronouncements

The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS
pronounced by ASB as effective on 11th Ashadh 2077. The NFRS conform, in all material
respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated
2079.03.31 has resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective
period shall be provided to the Banks and Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the
specific recommendation of ASB. Details of carve outs provided are as follows.

2.9.1 NFRS 9: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

a)

Impairment and collectability of financial assets measured at amortised cost

As per Para 5.5, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured
at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, they shall apply paragraph
5 (given below) to determine the amount of any impairment loss unless the entity is
a Bank and Financial Institution registered as per Bank and Financial Institution Act
2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher
of amount derived as per the norms prescribed by the Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 5 (given below) and shall apply
paragraph 5 (given below) to measure the impairment loss on financial assets other
than loan and advances.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the assets shall be reduced
either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be
recognized in profit of loss.

The carve out is not optional and has been provided until FY 2080-81(i.e., FY 2023-
24). Company will measure the impairment of loan and advances to customers as
higher of the impairment as assessed under NFRS or as per the norms prescribed by
Nepal Rastra Bank. The provision is mandatory where impairment under NFRS and
impairment under NRB norms has been disclosed for comparison and the higher of
the two is charged as impairment and recognized in the financial statements.
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Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the
part of effective interest rate

In para 5.4, effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial assets or financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortized cost of
a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instruments (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but small
not consider the expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received unless it isimmaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (Para B5.4.1
-B5.4.3), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption
that cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can
be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably
estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group
of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instruments (or group of financial instruments). This
carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2080-81 (i.e., FY 2023-24).

2.10 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the Company is a going
concern as the directors are satisfied that the Company have the resources to continue
in operation for the foreseeable future. In making the assessment, the directors have
considered a wide range of information related to present and future conditions including
theimpact of economic situation in the operations and the future projections of profitability,
cash flows and capital resources.

2.11 Materiality

The Company for the preparation of financial statements determines materiality based on
the nature or magnitude, or both. Materiality is a pervasive constraint in financial reporting
because it is pertinent to all the qualitative characteristics.

2.12 Comparative Figures

The Company has regrouped/rearranged the previous year’s figures wherever necessary.

2.13 Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop
the, such an exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective
sections.

Significant Accounting Policies

3.1

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified
to include the fair valuation to the extent required or permitted under NFRS as set out in the
relevant accounting policies. Financial information recorded and reported to comply with
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Directive of Nepal Rastra Bank and relevant business practices followed by the Company are
disclosed separately, where there have been deviations with recognition and presentation
criteria of NFRS.

3.2 Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash comprises cash on hand and demand
deposits and cash equivalents comprising highly liquid investments that are convertible
into cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturities of three
months or less.

3.3 Financial Instruments: Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.3.1 Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the
terms of the contract, which is the trade date or the settlement date.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company applies NFRS 7, NRFS 9 and NAS 39 for the recognition, and de-
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, the impairment of financial
assets, and hedge accounting. The Financial Instrument has been classified in line with
the provision of NFRS 9 as mentioned in chapter 4(Classification).

Financial asset is any asset that is:
a. Cash.
b. an equity ins trument of another entity.
c. acontractual right:
- toreceive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity; or

d. a contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments
and is:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable
number of the entity's own equity instruments; or

- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's
own equity instruments.

A financial liability is any liability that is:
a. contractual obligation:
- todeliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity; or

b. a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments
andis:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable
number of the entity’s own equity instruments; or
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- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s
own equity instruments.

3.3.2 Classification and measurement
Financial assets are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,
NFRS 9 classification - Financial Assets Subsequent measurement
1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At Fair Value - through Profit or Loss
) Held at fair value through Other Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Comprehensive Income Income

3 Held at amortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate

Financial Liabilities are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

NFRS 9 classification - Financial Liabilities Subsequent measurement

1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At fair value through Profit or Loss

2 Held atamortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate

3.3.3

3.3.4

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments (financial assets
and liabilities) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset, or a portion of a financial asset, from
its financial statements where the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have
expired, or have been transferred, usually by sale, and with them either substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset or significant risks and rewards, along with the
unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability has been settled, has expired or
has been extinguished.

Determination of fair value

The Company applies NFRS 9. All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair
value on the date of initial recognition and, depending on the classification of the
asset or liability, may continue to be held at fair value either through profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Wherever possible, fair value is determined by reference to a quoted market price for
that instrument. For many of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, quoted
prices are not available, and valuation models are used to estimate fair value. The
models calculate the expected cash flows under the terms of each specific contract,
and then discount these values back to a present value based on interest rate yields
and volatility of currency rates.

Tt e widaeT R0co/0c2 | ¥



\ 9 SGATCE e UUS BISallcd . [,

77 Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.
(AU T FpAE T D FAGATH T Hen)

The financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using an effective interest rate.

On initial recognition, it is presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless
there is observable information available in an active market to the contrary. The best
evidence of an instrument’s fair value on initial recognition is typically the transaction
price.

Various factors influence the availability of observable inputs, and these may vary from
product to product and change over time. Factors include the depth of activity in the
relevant market, the type of product, whether the product is new and not widely
traded in the marketplace, the maturity of market modelling and the nature of the
transaction (bespoke or generic). To the extent that valuation is based on models or
inputs that are not observable in the market, the determination of fair value can be
more subjective, dependent on the significance of the unobservable input to the
overall valuation. Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information
available, for example by reference to similar assets, similar maturities or other
analytical techniques.

The sensitivity of valuations used in the financial statements to possible changes in
significant unobservable inputs is not applicable to the Company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The valuation of financial instruments often involves a significant degree of judgement
and complexity, in particular where valuation models make use of unobservable inputs
(‘Level 3" assets and liabilities). This note provides information on these instruments,
including therelated unrealized gains and losses recognized in the period, adescription
of significant valuation techniques and unobservable inputs, and a sensitivity analysis.

Fair Value Hierarchy

NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires an entity to classify its assets and liabilities
according to a hierarchy that reflects the observe ability of significant market inputs.
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined below.

Level 1- Valuation Technique using quoted market prices.

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active
market. Such instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilitiesin active markets where the quoted priceis readily available,
and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions. An active
market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2- Valuation technique using observable inputs.

Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs
are observable in an active market. Valuations based on observable inputs use market
standard pricing techniques and are commonly traded in markets where all the
significant inputs are observable.

Level 3- Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant
inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). A valuation
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input is considered observable if it can be directly observed from transactions in an
active market, or if there is compelling external evidence demonstrating an executable
exit price. Unobservable input levels are generally determined via reference to
observable inputs, historical observations or using other analytical techniques. These
are financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or more
significant inputs are unobservable.

Impairment

Impairment of financial assets held at amortized costs

Impairment of financial assets is considered when the carrying values of the assets
are more than the recoverable amount from the assets. Impairment is tested for
all financial assets except those measured at fair value.

Impairment of loansand advances to customersand Company and financial institutions

As per NFRS 9

An entity shall measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. Impairment allowances that are
calculated on individual loans or on groups of loans assessed collectively are recorded
aschargestothe profitorlossand are recorded against the carryingamount ofimpaired
loans on the statement of financial position. Losses, which may arise from future
events, are not recognized.

Individually assessed loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers with significant value (Top 50 borrowers and
borrowers classified as bad as per Nepal RastraBank Directive) areassessed forindividual
impairment test. The recoverable value of a loan is estimated based on realizable
value of collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past experience of the Company.
The factors considered in determining whether a loan is individually significant for the
purposes of assessing impairment include the size of the loan, the number of loans in
the portfolio, and the importance of the individual loan relationship, and how this is
managed. Loans that are determined to be individually significant based on the above
and other relevant factors are individually assessed for impairment, except when
volumes of defaults and losses are sufficient to justify treatment under a collective
methodology. Loans considered as individually significant are typically for corporate
and commercial customers, are for larger amounts and are managed on an individual
basis. For these loans, the group considers on a case-by-case basis at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence that a loan is impaired. The criteria used
to make this assessment include:

* Known cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower.

* Contractual payments of either principal or interest being past due for more than
90 days

* Theprobability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial realisation.
* A concession granted to the borrower for economic or legal reasons relating to
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the borrower’s financial difficulty that results in forgiveness or postponement of
principal, interest, or fees, where the concession is not insignificant; and

* There has been deterioration in the financial condition or outlook of the borrower
such that its ability to repay is considered doubtful. For loans where objective
evidence of impairment exists, impairment losses are determined considering
the following factors:

- The group’s aggregate exposure to the customer

- The viability of the customer’s business model and their capacity to trade
successfully out of financial difficulties and generate sufficient cash flow to service
debt obligations

- The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries
- The likely dividend available on liquidation or bankruptcy

- The extent of other creditors’ commitments ranking ahead of, or pari-passu with,
the group and the likelihood of other creditors continuing to support the company

- The complexity of determining the aggregate amount and ranking of all creditors’
claims and the extent to which legal and insurance uncertainties are evident

* The realisable value of security (or other credit mitigants) and likelihood of
successful repossession

* The likely costs of obtaining and selling collateral as part of foreclosure

* The ability of the borrower to obtain, and make payments in, the currency of the
loan if not denominated in local currency; and

* When available, the secondary market price of the debt.

The determination of the realizable value of security is based on the market value
at the time the impairment assessment is performed. The value is not adjusted for
expected future changes in market prices, though adjustments are made to reflect
local conditions such as forced sale discounts. Impairment losses are calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows of a loan, which includes expected future
receipts of contractual interest, at the loan’s original effective interest rate and
comparing the resultant present value with the loan’s current carrying amount. The
impairment allowances on individually significant accounts are reviewed at least
quarterly and more regularly when circumstances require.

Collectively assessed loans and advances

Impairment is assessed collectively to cover losses, which have been incurred
but have not yet been identified on loans subject to individual assessment or for
homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant. Retail
lending portfolios are generally assessed for impairment collectively as the portfolios
are generally large homogeneous loan pools. Individually assessed loans for which
no evidence of impairment has been specifically identified on an individual basis
are grouped together according to their credit risk characteristics for a collective
impairment assessment. These credit risk characteristics may include type of business
involved, type of products offered, security obtained or other relevant factors. This
assessment captures impairment losses that the Company has incurred because
of events occurring before the balance sheet date, which the Company is not able
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to identify on an individual loan basis, and that can be reliably estimated. When
information becomes available which identifies losses on individual loans within
the group, those loans are removed from the group and assessed individually. The
collective impairment allowance is determined after considering:

* Historical loss experience in portfolios of similar credit risk characteristics (for
example, by industry sector, loan grade or product).

* The estimated period between a loss occurring and the loss being identified and
evidenced by the establishment of an appropriate allowance against the individual
loan; and

* Management’s judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual level of inherent losses at the reporting date is likely to be
greater or less than that suggested by historical experience.The period between an
impairment occurring and its identification is estimated by local management for
each identified portfolio based on economic and market conditions, customer
behaviour, portfolio management information, credit management techniques
and collection and recovery experiences in the market.

 Statistical methods are used to determine collective impairment losses for
homogeneous groups of loans not considered individually significant.

i. Impairment model under Nepal Rastra Bank Directives

Impairment in respect of loans and advances are based on management’s
assessment of the degree of possible losses of the loans and advances, and
subject to the minimum impairment prescribed in NRB Directives. Impairment
is charged for possible losses on loans and advances at 1.20% to 100% based on
classification of loans and advances, overdraft and bills purchased in accordance
with NRB directives, which is principally based on the overdue criteria of the
receivables.

ii. Policy adopted
As per the carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Company has measured
impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per

norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount
determined as per para 5 of Carve out notice (mentioned in para 2.9.1 above).

Reversals of impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the excess is written back by reducing the loan impairment
allowance account accordingly. The write-back is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or loss.

Write-off of loans and advances

Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written
off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
Where loans are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds from
the realization of security. In circumstances where the net realizable value of
any collateral has been determined and there is no reasonable expectation
of further recovery, write-off may be earlier.
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(B) Available for sale financial instruments

* Available-for-sale debt securities. In assessing objective evidence of impairment
at the reporting date, the Company considers all available evidence, including
observable data or information about events specifically relating to the securities,
which may result in a shortfall in the recovery of future cash flows. Financial
difficulties of theissuer, as well as otherfactors such as information about the issuers’
liquidity, business and financial risk exposures, levels of and trends in default for
similar financial assets, national and local economic trends and conditions, and
the fair value of collateral and guarantees may be considered individually, or in
combination, to determine if there is objective evidence of impairment. In addition,
the performance of underlying collateral and the extent and depth of market price
declines is relevant when assessing objective evidence of impairment of available-
for-sale securities. The primary indicators of potential impairment are considered
to be adverse fair value movements and the disappearance of an active market for
a security, while changes in credit ratings are of secondary importance.

* Available-for-sale equity securities. Objective evidence of impairment may include
specific information about the issuer as detailed above but may also include
information about significant changes in technology, markets, economics, or
the law that provides evidence that the cost of the equity securities may not be
recovered. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity below its
cost is also objective evidence of impairment. In assessing whether it is significant,
the decline in fair value is evaluated against the original cost of the asset at initial
recognition. In assessing whether it is prolonged, the decline is evaluated against
the continuous period in which the fair value of the asset has been below its original
cost at initial recognition.

Once an impairment loss has been recognised, the subsequent accounting
treatment for changes in the fair value of that asset depends on the type of asset:

* For an available-for-sale debt security, a subsequent decline in the fair value of
the instrument is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of further decreases in the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset. Where there is no further objective evidence of impairment, the
decline in the fair value of the financial asset is recognised in other comprehensive
income. If the fair value of a debt security increases in a subsequent period, and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, or the instrument is no longer impaired, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

* For an available-for-sale equity security, all subsequent increases in the fair
value of the instrument are treated as a revaluation and are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised on the equity security
are not reversed through profit or loss. Subsequent decreases in the fair value of
the available-for-sale equity security are recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that further cumulative impairment losses have been incurred.
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3.3.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).

3.4 Property and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially
recognized at cost, if, and only if:

e itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity; and

* the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes purchase price including any non-refundable taxes after deducting
volume rebates and trade discounts and such other costs that are incurred to bring
asset to location and condition to be operating in a mannerintended by management.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the following:
* the cost of materials and direct labor.

* anyothercostsdirectly attributable to bringing the assets toa working condition for
their intended use.

* when the Company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an
estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located; and

* (Capitalized borrowing costs for qualifying assets.

The Company adopts a cost model for entire class of property and equipment.
Neither class of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model
nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date. The items of property
and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic
benefits from the expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and
maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as
the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount
of the item) is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

Assets with a value of less than Rs. 5,000 are charged off to revenue irrespective of
their useful life in the year of purchase.
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b. Depreciation
Class of assets Useful life
Computer 5 Years
Furniture and Fixture 10 Years
Office Equipment 10Years
Other Fixed Assets 10 Years
Vehicle 10 Years
Building 50 Years
Leasehold 15 years or lease period whichever is lower
Software Over the contract period (5 years if contract period not available)

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful life as per management
judgement as follows:

c. De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain
or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property and equipment shall be
included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized except for sales & lease back
transaction. The gain shall not be classified as revenue.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted, if any.

3.5 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired in Business Combination is recognized as goodwill. Following initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill are accounted for in accordance with NAS 38
Intangible Assets and NAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Intangible assets include software and licenses. They are initially recognized when they are
separable or arise from contractual or other legal rights, the cost can be measured reliably
and, in the case of intangible assets not acquired in a business combination, where it is
probable that future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow from their use.

Intangible assets are stated at cost (which is, in the case of assets acquired in a business
combination, the acquisition date fair value) lessaccumulated amortization and impairment,
if any. These are amortized over their useful lives in a manner that reflects the pattern to
which they contribute to future cash flows.

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when there are indications that impairment
may have occurred.

¥g | faut arfifer gfaaaT Roco/0c?



3.6

3.7

7ih) A Soacdioe UUs BISalod . [,

7 Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.
(AT W7 qpare T A SIS W )

Determining the estimated useful lives of intangible assets requires an analysis of
circumstances. The assessment of whether an asset is exhibiting indicators of impairment
as well as the calculation of impairment, which requires the estimation of future cash flows
and fair values less costs to sell, also requires the preparation of cash flow forecasts and fair
values for assets that may not be regularly bought and sold.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of
software are capitalized where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits
in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful
life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. If an asset’s
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is
written down immediately.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful
life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the
current and comparative periods is five years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as
property and equipment and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land,
land and buildings acquired by the Company as non-Banking assets but not sold as on the
reporting date.

The Company holds investment property that has been acquired through enforcement of
security over the loans and advances.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and
liabilities of the disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are available-for-sale in their present condition;
and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the
assets (or assets and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the
applicable accounting policies described above.

Income Taxes

The Company applies NAS 12 Income Taxes in accounting for taxes on income. Income
tax payable on taxable profits (Current Tax) is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the profits arise. Withholding taxes are also treated as income taxes. Income tax
recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognized as a current tax asset only to the extent
that it is regarded as recoverable by offset against taxable profits arising in the current or
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prior period. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the assets and liability method, on temporary
differences arising from the differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates and legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial
position date, which are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset is realized, or the
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when there
is both a legal right to set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments: The Company is subject to corporate income
taxes under the Income Tax Act 2058. There may be many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax treatment is uncertain and cannot be determined until resolution
has been reached with the relevant tax authority. Liabilities relating to these matters
are based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due after taking into account
external advice where appropriate.

Deferred tax assets have been recognized based on business profit forecasts. Further detail
on the recognition of deferred tax assets is provided in the deferred tax assets and liabilities
section of this tax note.

3.8 Provisions

The Company applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in
accounting for non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events
where it is more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to
settle the obligation, which can be reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated
costs when an obligation exists.

3.9 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course
of the ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other
than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognized.

3.9.1 InterestIncome

Interest income includes interest income on accrual basis from loan and advance
to borrowers, loans, and investment in government securities, investment in NRB
bond, and interest on investment securities measured at fair value.

a) Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019 by NRB.

Criteria for determining loans on which interest no longer be recognized to the
profit or loss account but shall be suspended

Guideline issued by NRB on interest income recognition defines certain
criteria for determining loans on which interest no longer be recognized to the
profit or loss account but shall be suspended. These criteria are as follows:
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a. Loanswherethereisreasonable doubtaboutthe ultimate collectability of principal
or interest.

b. Loans against which individual impairment i.e., lifetime impairment as per NFRS 9
has been made.

¢. Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3
months in arrears and where the “net realizable value” of security is insufficient to
cover payment of principal and accrued interest.

d. Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12
months in arrears, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral.

e. Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after the
expiry of the loan and even not renewed within 3 months of the expiry, and where
the net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and
accrued interest.

f. Overdrafts and other short-term facilities which have not been settled after
the expiry of the loan and even not renewed within 12 months of the expiry,
irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral.

Criteria to cease the accrual of interest

Bank and Financial Institutions shall accrue the interest on loan although it has been
decided to suspend the recognition of income. However, BFIs shall cease to accrue
interest on loan, in case where contractual payments of principal and/or interest of
the loan are due for more than 12 months and the “net realizable value” of security is
insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest. Cessation of accrual
of interest for accounting purpose shall not preclude an entity to continue to accrue
interest on a memorandum basis for legal enforcement purposes unless the loan is
written off.

3.9.2 Fee and Commission Income

Fees and Commission Income being the transaction costs integral to the effective
interest rate on financial assets. However, as per the Carve out issued by ICAN
regarding the treatment of fee and commission in EIR rate, fees to be considered for EIR
computation unless it is impracticable to determine reliably. Since such transaction
costs are not identifiable for separate customers and therefore being impracticable,
they have not been considered when computing EIR. Other fees and commission
income are recognized on an accrual basis.

3.9.3 Dividend Income

Dividendincomesarerecognized whentherighttoreceive suchdividendis established.
Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities.

3.10 Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in profit or loss
using an effective interest rate method. The interest expense on all trading liabilities is
considered to be incidental to the Company’s trading operations and is presented together
with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.
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3.11 Impairment of non-financial Assets:

3.12

4R

3.13

Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
which is higher of Fair Value less cost to sell or value in use. Where the carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount, assets are considered impaired and are written down to
recoverable amount.

Employee Benefit

The Company applies NAS 19 Employee benefits for accounting most of the components
of staff costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, allowances, socials security expenses, performance bonuses as provided in the
law and other employee-related expenses are recognized over the period in which the
employees provide services to which the payments relate.

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Contribution Scheme

The Company provides provident fund contribution as post-retirement benefits under
defined contribution scheme. A percentage of the basic salary is paid into the scheme on
monthly basis. Company recognizes contributions due in respect of the accounting period
to profit and loss. Any contributions unpaid at the reporting date are included as a liability.

The Company provides gratuity for the staff who have joined the Company on or after 4
September 2017under defined contribution schemes at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Benefit Schemes

The Company continues to operate gratuity (for employees who joined before 4 September
2017), accumulated annual leave payments and sick leave payments as post-retirement
benefits as defined benefit schemes. For employees who joined the Company before 4
September 2017, gratuity liability is based on number of completed years of service. Such
scheme Liabilities under each of those schemes are valued at fair value using actuarial re-
measurement. Company presents obligation less the fair value of the assets after applying
the asset ceiling test. Company intends to fund the liabilities with scheme assets, though
there are no scheme assets as at reporting date.

Changes in scheme liabilities or assets (re-measurements) that do not arise from regular
service costs, net interest on net defined benefit liabilities or assets, settlements, or
contributions to the scheme, are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
leave compensations that are taken directly to the profit or loss.

Re-measurements comprise experience adjustments (differences between previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred), the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions, return on scheme assets (excluding amounts included in the interest on the
assets) and any changes in the effect of the asset ceiling restriction (excluding amounts
included in the interest on the restriction).

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
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conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition
of a lease in NFRS 16.

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component,
the Company allocates consideration in the contract to each lease component based
on its relative stand-alone price. However, for leases of branches and office premises the
Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and accounts for the lease
and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Companyrecognizesaright-of-use assetand alease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
any improvements made to branches or office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements
of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, Company’s incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The average cost of funds of Company till the date of signing any lease contract has been
considered as its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

* fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives
receivable.

*  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date.

* amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

*  the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised
in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets under Property and Equipment (Note 4.13) and
lease liabilities under other liabilities (Note 4.23) separately in the Statement of Financial
Position.
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The interest expenses on lease liability have been presented under interest expenses (Note
4.30) and depreciation charges on right of use assets Depreciation and Amortization (Note
4.38) in the statement of profit or loss.

3.14 Share Capital and Reserves

The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined
as residual interest in the total assets of the Company after deducting all its liabilities.
Common shares are classified as equity of the Company and distributions thereon are
presented in a statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized
in equity in the period in which they are declared. Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the
equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon. The reserves include
retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, foreign exchange
equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, investment adjustment reserve, CSR reserve etc.

3.15 Earnings per Share including diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basicearnings pershareisbased on the profitattributable to equity holders
of the Company and the basic weighted average number of shares. When calculating the
diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted for
the effects of all diluted potential ordinary shares held in respect of the Company.
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Shree Investment and Finance Co. Ltd.

Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)

5. Disclosure of Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management Framework

The Company must deal with various risks associated with its business operations and it has
a forward-looking approach to managing risks. The Company has robust internal control
system in place focused on extensive risk management framework for effective assessment,
measurement, and mitigation of risk. The primary goal of the risk management framework
is long-term sustainability of the Company and having appropriate balance between risk
and return, to enhance shareholder value.

The Company has strong credit appraisal and risk assessment practices in place for
identification, measurement, monitoring and control of credit risk exposures. The Company
uses internal Credit Risk Assessment Models and scorecards for assessing credit risk under
differentexposure segments. Internal ratings of the Company are subject toacomprehensive
rating validation framework. The Risk Management Committee (RMC) oversees overall risk
governance framework of The Company. The Committee, on an on-going basis, monitors
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems. The Board is
apprised regularly by the RMC regarding appropriateness and adequacy of the existing
risk identification and measurement system put in place in the Company and makes
recommendations for devising appropriate system & procedures.

5.2 CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss that the Company may face because of a borrower or
counterparty not meeting its obligations in line with the original contract. Since the majority
of the Company’s assets are in the form of loans and advances, management of credit
risk becomes the most crucial task. A Company’s approach to Credit Risk Management is
governed by Board’s approved policies and procedures. Through this policy, the Company
seeks to:

i)  Decide the policy and strategy for Integrated Risk Management covering the various
risk exposures of the Company.

ii)  Setup policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and control
and reporting of Credit Risks.

iii) Ensure that the Credit Risk Management Process is as per the guidelines given in the
Company's policy.
iv) Review and approve Credit Risk limits.

v)  Ensure robustness of financial models, and effectiveness of systems used to calculate
Credit Risk.

go | faut anfifer ufdaeT Roco/0c?
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There is a well-defined credit risk management structure of the Company, which comprises

of

* Risk Management Committee (RMC)

. Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) : The Credit Risk Management
Committee (CRMC), monitors Credit Risk, ensuring compliance and implementations
of Credit Risk policy/strategy approved by the Board and incorporation of Regulatory
Compliance in Company’s Policies and Guidelines.

i) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Company has financial assets consisting mainly of loans & advances and
investments at amortized cost. In these cases, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the carrying amount of the related financial assets.

ii) Credit quality of neither past due nor impaired and past due or impaired

The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial assets
exposed to credit risk, based on the Company’s internal credit rating system as
of 31 Ashadh 2081.

(Amount in NPR Millions)

Neither Past due
Past due | Past due .
. past More | Individually
Particulars less 90 91 to . . Total

due nor than 180 | impaired

. . days | 180 days

impaired days
Financial Assets
Assets carried at Amortized Cost
Cash and cash equivalent 566 566
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 359 359
Placement with Company
and Financial Institutions
Loans and advances 5,222 221 129 20 13| 5,605
Investment securities
Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL)
Derivative financial instruments
Trading Assets
Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Investment securities 2,317 2,317
Investment in subsidiaries
Total 8,464 221 129 20 13| 8,847

5.3. Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a Company resulting from movements in market prices, in
particular, changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and commodity
prices. Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on and off-balance sheet positions
arising from movements in market prices.
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The risks subject to this requirement are:

a. Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

b. Currency Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to
experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and
to suffer actual financial losses because of changes in value between the
currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

c. EquityPriceRisk:Equity priceriskistherisk thatthefairvalue orfuture cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in equity prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or
its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

One of the key challenges in market risk is quantification of risks. Appropriate
models/measures need to be used based on the materiality of identified risks.
Accurate assessment will help to reduce loss. There are many sensitivities measures
available to quantify market risk. However, no single measure can reflect all
aspects of market risk. The Company utilizes various statistical and non-statistical
risk measures to enhance the stability of risk measurement. Overall, these risk
measures provide a comprehensive view of market risk exposure more than any
single measure by itself.

The Market Risk Management Committee (MRMC) has the overall responsibility to
identify, monitor / manage various market risk exposures of the Company through
Market risk limits, stop loss limits, etc., at a more granular level. MRMC is headed by
the Managing Director, CFO is functional head and CRCO is member secretary. The
MRMC reviews structured liquidity, interest rate risk, open position of currencies
and risk associated investment risk etc. MRMC meets at quarterly intervals. The
Member secretary and functional head will ensure regulatory compliances.

The Assets Liability committee (ALCO) is a senior management level committee
responsible for supervision/management of Market Risk (mainly interest rate and
liquidity risks). ALCO is the apex body for assets liabilities management, within the
risk parameters laid down by the Company's Board and it shall remain inter alia in
charge of

* Asset Liability Management
* Structural Balance Sheet Risk and Policy

A Company is required to manage market risk and ensures that the capital
requirements for market risk are being maintained on a continuous basis.
Capital assessment is essential to limit risk and reduce the effect of potential and
unexpected losses.

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and system or from external events. The Operational Risk
Management Committee (ORMC) reviews the operational risk profile of the
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Company at periodic intervals and recommends suitable controls/mitigation for managing
operational risk in the Company. The Committee anticipates changes and threats, concurs
on areas of highest priority and related mitigation strategies and ensures that adequate
resources are being assigned to mitigate risks as needed. The Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC) is an executive Committee which is headed by the DY. CEO and CRCO
is member secretary. Its principal objective is the mitigation of operational risks within the
Company by creation and maintenance of an operational risk management process.

All the staff are well trained about risks and are guided on the areas of their operation. The
Company continues to strengthen its risk management system through various measures
to address the risks posed by a multitude of factors, which ultimately helps the Company
to reaffirm its position as one of the best-managed company in Nepal. For assessment of
Pillar-I risks and Pillar-l risks such as liquidity risk and interest rate risk, as well as adequacy
of capital and overall risk management practices under normal and stressed conditions,
the Company has comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
in place.

The Operational Risk Management Framework has been established with an explicit
mandate to support the implementation of an effective Operational Risk Management
process and to meet Basel, NRB and parent company (SIFCO) requirements. This will entail:

a. Increasing Operational Risk & Loss transparency by incident reporting.

b.  Enhancing Operational Risk awareness through Risk and Control Self-assessment
(RCSA) process.

c.  Improving early warning information through implementation of Key Risk Indicators
(KRIs).

d. Facilitate speedy resolution of risk issues by effectively tracking and follow-up of
assessment outcomes; and

e.  Finally, allocation of risk ownership and responsibilities.

Key Roles of ORMC:

. Review the risk profiles, understand future changes and threats, and concur on areas
of highest priority and related mitigation strategy.

. Assure that adequate resources are being assigned to mitigate risks as needed.

. Communicate with business units and staff about the importance of operational risk
and assure adequate participation and cooperation.

. Review and approve the development and implementation of operational risk
methodologies and tools including assessments, reporting, capital and loss event
databases.

. Receive and review reports/presentations from various business groups, support
departments (IT, HR etc.) and business units, processing cells about their risk profiles
and mitigation programs.

. To discuss and recommend suitable controls/mitigations for managing operation
risks

. Analyze frauds, potential losses, non-compliance, breaches etc. and recommend
corrective measures to prevent recurrences.
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. Discuss any issues arising / directions in any one business unit/product which may
impact the risks of other business/products.

. Continually promote risk awareness across all business units so that complacency
does not set in.

. Monitor and ensure that appropriate ORM frameworks are in place.

. Review the reports presented by Central Operations Department (COD) with respect
to operational risk profile of the Company. Approve policy-related mitigation plans.

. Review roll-out plans for implementation of ORM initiatives. Proactively review and
manage potential risks which may arise from regulatory changes/or changes in
economic /political environment in order to keep ahead.

5.5. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company
might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of
mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.
Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available
to the Company on acceptable terms. To limit this risk, management has arranged for
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base and adopted a policy of
managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a
daily basis.The Company has developed internal control processes and contingency funding
plans for managing liquidity risk. The Company always maintains liquid assets higher than
regulatory prescription to mitigate the liquidity risk.

Assets Liability committee (ALCO) is a senior management level committee responsible for
supervision/management of liquidity risks.

Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities at closing date of financial year, which is
used by the management to monitor and take necessary action for liquidity in the Company,

is as under:
As on 31 Ashadh 2081
Amount in NPR Millions
S. . Less than 3 6 Month- | More than
Particulars 3-6 Month Total
N. Month 1Year 1year
Assets
1 | Cash and cash equivalent 566 566
2 | Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 359 359

Placement  with  Company
and Financial Institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Other trading assets
Loansand advancesto customers 536 963 2,152 1,954 5,605
Investment securities 489 1,828 2,317

Current tax assets

O |0 ([N | |u»v b

Investment in subsidiaries

gy | faut arfifer gfaaaT Roco/0c?



\\ 3l SGANCAGE UUS BISaed . 1.
/ Shree Inv(estment and Finance Co. Itd.

AUTE T e T T goIwE T W)

S. . Less than 3 6 Month- | More than
N Particulars Month 3-6 Month 1Year 1year Total
10 | Investment in associates
11 | Investment property
12 | Property and equipment
13 | Goodwill and Intangible assets
14 | Deferred tax assets
15 | Other assets 22 22
Total (A) 1,971 963 2,152 3,782 8,868
Liabilities
: Due to Company and Financial 45

Institutions
2 | Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 187
3 | Derivative financial instruments
4 | Deposits from customers 1,523 877 1,949 3,025 7,373
5 | Borrowing
6 | Current tax liabilities
7 | Provisions
8 | Deferred tax liabilities
9 | Other liabilities 79 79
10 | Debt securities issued
11 | Subordinated liabilities
Total (B) 1,833 877 1,949 3,025 7,684
Net Assets (A-B) 138 86 203 757 1,184
Cumulative Net Assets 138 224 427 1,184

5.6. Capital Management

5.6.1.

Qualitative disclosures

The objective of capital management is to ensure that the Company has adequate
Capital to support material risks in the business and also to encourage the Company
to develop and use better Risk Management Techniques for monitoring and managing
risks.

The Company has devised ICAAP, which is intended to ensure that it has adequate
capital to support all the risks in business, to improve upon the risk over time and
achieve better risk management techniques in monitoring and managing risks. ICAAP
Committee meets at quarterly intervals to review the internal capital assessment
commensurate with the risk profile and review the portfolios which require capital
charge. ICAAP Committee also reviews strengthening of risk management, applying
internal limits, strengthening the level of provisions and reserves, and improving
internal controls.
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5.6.2. Quantitative Disclosures
a) Capital structure and capital adequacy
i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components

Amount In ‘000

1.2 Capital

31 Ashadh
2081

31 Ashadh
2080

Core Capital (Tier I) (CET1 + AT1)

1,207,092

1,221,813

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)

Paid up Equity Share Capital

981,683

981,683

Equity Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

271,998

259,667

Retained Earnings

23,712

50,766

Un-audited Current Year Cumulative Profit

Capital Redemption Reserve

S|IQ |+~ |Q|nNn T |

Capital Adjustment Reserve

i | Debenture Redemption Reserve

j |Dividend Equalization Reserves

k [Bargain Purchase Gain

| | Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets (software in our case)

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in Equity in Licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions with Financial Interests

= || (o |5 |3

Less: Investment in Equity of Institutions in Excess of Limits

Less: Investments Arising Out of Underwriting Commitments

Less: Reciprocal Crossholdings

Less: Purchase of Land & Building in Excess of Limit and Unutilized

70,302

70,302

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets

Less: Un-recognized Defined Benefits Pension Liabilities

Less: Negative Balance of Reserve Accounts

N | [X |[S|[<|c|~+]|wn

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments Under Pillar Il

Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4 a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and
Restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

Additional Tier 1 (AT1)

a |Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Share Capital

b |Perpetual Debt Instruments

¢ |Stock Premium
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Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components

Amount In‘000

Particular

o
<

31 Ashadh
2081

31 Ashadh
2080

Supplementary Capital (Tier Il)

75,281

73,482

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

Stock Premium

General loan loss provision

74,432

72,6 33

Investment Adjustment Reserve

849

849

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Exchange Equalization Reserve

— | |=~[(m(aln |T|w

Other Reserves

iii. Deductions from capital

The following particulars have been considered for deduction from core capital:

Amount In‘000

Particulars 31 Ashadh 31 Ashadh
2081 2080
Intangible Assets (software in our case) - -
Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests i i
(subsidiary NSMBL)
Less: .P'urchase of Land & Building in Excess of Limit and 70,302 70,302
Unutilized
Total 70,302 70,302
iv. Total qualifying capital
Amount In‘000
Particulars 31 Ashadh 31 Ashadh
2081 2080
Tier | Capital 1,207,092 1,221,813
Tier Il Capital 75,281 73,482
Total 1,282,373 1,295,295
Capital Adequacy Ratio
. . 31 Ashadh 31 Ashadh
Capital Adequacy Ratios 2081 2080
Common Equity Tier 1 C'aplta?I to Total RIS‘k Weighted 18.38% 19.58%
Exposures (After Company's adjustments of Pillar 1)
Tier | Ca;l)ltal .to Total RISk. Weighted Exposures (After 1.15% 117%
Company's adjustments of Pillar 1)
Tier I and Tier Il Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 0 o
(After Company's adjustments of Pillar Il) 19.53% 20.75%

Tt anfifer afdaaT Roco/0c? |
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Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especiallyincaseof subordinated termdebtsincluding hybrid capitalinstruments

Ordinary share capital: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a
par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of preferential
amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

b) Risk Exposures

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk
(Amount ‘000)

. . 31 Ashadh
S.No. Risk Weighted Exposures 2081
1 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 5,902,671
2 | Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 397,414
3 |Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
4 |Regulatory Adjustment 266,108
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 6,566,193

Risk weighted exposure under each of 18 Categories of Credit Risk
Amount In‘000

NS(;. Risk Weighted Exposures 31 ;\;21adh
1 |Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy requirements 119,824.22
2 |Claims on Domestic Corporates (Unrated) 1,630,946.62
3 |Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 907,974.07
4 |Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail except granularity 200,166.55
5 |Claims secured by residential properties 294,457.10
6 |Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue) 29,002.36
7 |Claims secured by Commercial real estate 438,364.20
8 |Past due claims (except for claims secured by residential properties) 241,262.37
9 |High Risk claims 498,444.96
10 Real Estate loans for land acquisition and development (Other than 47365087
mentioned in Capital Adequacy framework 2007-point 3.3(j)(1)(j)) T
11 |Lending against Shares(above Rs.5 Million) 448,492.54
12 |Lending Against Shares(upto Rs. 5 Million) 65,099.80
13 [Personal Hirepurchase/Personal Auto Loans 33,130.81
14 I.nvest.ments in equity and other capital instruments of institutions 111.333.30
listed in stock exchange
Investments in equity and other capital instruments of institutions not
15 |,. . 1,128.75
listed in the stock exchange
16 |Staff loan secured by residential property 27,915.62
17 |Other Assets 206,747.83
18 |Off Balance Sheet Exposures 174,728.90
Total 5,902,670.87

[l o | Tt arftfer ufaere Roco/0c?
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Amount In ‘000

Adjustment of Pillar Il)

. . 31 Ashadh | 31 Ashadh
1.1 Risk Weighted Exposures 2081 2080
a |Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 5,902,671 5,554,554
b |Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 397,414 430,772
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (a+b-c)
Adjustments Under Pillar Il
Add: RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3%
of gross inc:me. i i ° 77,105 76,028
Add: 3% of the total RWE as Supervisor is not satisfied with
the overall Risk Management Policies and Procedures (6.4 189,003 179,559
a9
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Company's 6,566,193| 6,240,914

Amount of NPA (Gross and Net) as on 31 Ashadh 2081

Amount In‘000

> Gross NPA Net NPA
No. Particulars
1 Restructured
2 Substandard 129,136 96,852
3 Doubtful 19,752 9,876
4 Loss 13,309 0
Total 162,197 106,728
et anfier gfaereT R0co/0c? | R
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5.7. Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

As on 31 Ashadh 2081

Amount in NPR

=
o ., 5 9 i3
2 W0 e o
© 0 W5 b4 (V]
v - 3 9 —_
. . () '; S © o g £ 3 [0
Financial Assets ° 5 © ><°g O N °
> ) = O L v - =
c = 'S 2 QL =
[ = £
s - % f, o <
it (V)
Cash and cash equivalent 41 565,651,040 565,651,040
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 358,667,440 358,667,440
Placement with Company and Financial 43
Institutions '
Derivative financial instruments 44
Other trading assets 45
Loan and advances to B/Fls 46 212,024,800 212,024,800
Loans and advances to customers 47 5,393,053,710| 5,393,053,710
Investment securities 48 2,316,572,297 2,316,572,297
Current tax assets 49 3,376,091 3,376,091
Investment in subsidiaries 41
Investment in associates 411
Investment property 4.12 14,602,600 14,602,600
Property and equipment 413 152,691,118 152,691,118
Goodwill and Intangible assets 414 2,694,959 2,694,959
Deferred tax assets 415
Other assets 416 22,361,781 22,361,780
Total 6,569,489,940 | 2,316,572,297 | 155,386,077 | 9,041,695,835
As on 31 Ashadh 2081
Amount in NPR
" Fair Value
. e e Lsreas ] Amortized
Financial Liabilities ° Through Cost Total
Z | Profitorloss
Due to Company and Financial Institutions | 4.17 44,915,594 44,915,594
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 186,875,064 186,875,064
Derivative financial instruments 4.19
Deposits from customers 4.2 7,373,425,075 7,373,425,075
Borrowing 4.21
Current tax liabilities 49
Provisions 422
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 14,082,418 14,082,418
Other liabilities 423 78,876,780 78,876,780
Debt securities issued 4.24
Subordinated liabilities 4.25
Total 7,698,174,931 7,698,174,931
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5.7.2. Disclosure on measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and
liabilities
a. Revenue from external customers includes gross interest revenue, gross fee and
commission revenue, net trading revenue and other operating incomes (does
not include intersegment revenue).

b. Net Revenue includes net interest income, net fee and commission income, net
trading revenue and net other operating incomes.

Interest revenue includes gross interest revenue of the Company.
Interest expense includes gross interest expense of the Company.
Net Interest revenue is Interest revenue less interest expense (f=d-e).

o oo n

Depreciation and amortisation for the segments' identifiable assets has been
allocated to the respective segments.

Company does not have investment in associates and / or joint venture.

Qe

h. There are no material non-cash item.

i.  Impairment of assets has been specifically identified for each segment assets and
disclosed accordingly.

j.  Segment Assets have been disclosed as identified for each segment.

k. Itis Company's policy to keep segment's asset to be equal to segment liabilities
under transfer pricing mechanism.

5.7.3. Information about geographical areas as on 31 Ashadh 2081
Province wise revenue from following geographical areas.

5.7.4. Information about major customers

5.8. Share Options and Share Based Payments

Particulars Percentage (%) Amount in Lakh

a. Domestic

Koshi Province 6.22% 610
Bagmati Province 71.96% 7,056
Gandaki Province 4.20% 412
Lumbini Province 16.31% 1,599
Karnali Province 1.31% 128
Sub-total(a) 100% 9,805
b. Foreign - -
Sub-total(b) - -
Total(a+b) 100% 9,805

Revenue from a single external customer does not amount to

the entity’s revenue.

10 percent or more of

There are no share options and employees, and directors are not given any share-based

payments whether equity settled, or cash settled.
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities include guarantees, irrevocable credit commitment and letter of credit
and contingent liabilities related to the legal proceedings or regulatory matters are not
recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when the probability of settlement
is remote.

Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28 and summary
presented hereunder:

Particular 31 Ashadh 2081 31 Ashadh 2080
Contingent liabilities 800,000 800,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease Commitment 82,072,006 54,503,711
Litigation 254,203
Total 82,872,006 55,557,914

Related Parties Disclosures

Parties are related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operation decisions, or one other
party controls both. The definition includes Subsidiaries, Associates, Directors and Key
Management Personnel.

Name Designation

Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman

Dinesh Raj Joshi Director

Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director

Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director

Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director

Mamata Adhikari Director

Adarsha Raj Pandey Director

Lilamani Neupane Chief Executive Officer

Amount paid to Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors have reappointed Mr. Lilamani Neupane as Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 2078/08/23 for the period of 4 years. CEO has been paid a
total of NPR. 8,164,759 and has been provided vehicle facility for official purpose.

The Salary and benefits paid to the CEO are as follow:

Basic Provident Fund Allowance Bonus Oth.e.r Total
Salary Perquisites Income
5,191,963 519,198 1,082,959 1,370,639 - 8,164,759

Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:
The Company has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.

Tt amfish wfdelat Roco/o0c? | %3
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Directors and other Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The Company'’s Directors, Key Management Personnel and persons connected with them,
are also considered to be related parties for disclosure purposes. Personnel representing
the Central Management Committee (CENMAC) are considered as KMP.

Directors related expenses

The details of expenses incurred by the Company for the member of the Board of Director

is as under:

Amount in NPR

Particulars Expenses
Transaction during the year 31 Ashadh 31 Ashadh
2081 2080

Board Meeting Fee 661,000 637,000
Audit Committee Meeting Fee 96,000 80,000
Risk Management Committee Meeting Fee 64,000 64,000
AML/CFT Committee Fee 80,000 64,000
Employee Service Facility Committee Meeting Fee 16,000 16,000
Food, Lodging, Travelling & Halting Expenses for Board level - -
meetings and Telephone, newspaper, and other Expenses

Total 917,000 861,000

5.11 Merger and Acquisition

The Company has not undertaken any mergers and acquisitions during the year. .

5.12. Events After Reporting Data

The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to quality as
adjusted / non-adjusted events after the end of reporting period. There are no material
events that have occurred subsequent to 31st Ashadh, 2081 till signing of Financial

Statement on 3rd December 2024.

5.13. Employee Bonus

The Company has provided employee bonus at the rate 10% of profit before tax as per

prevailing Bonus Act, 2030.
5.14. Reserves

5.14.1. Corporate Social Responsibility

As per the NRB directive no. 6.16 on the Corporate Social Responsibility, the
Company has allocated 1% of the net profit of current fiscal year for CSR activities.
The amount allocated for corporate social responsibility reserve is Rs. 616,593 and
Rs. 750,148 for current year and previous year respectively. Comparative table of CSR

expenses and fund is as under:
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Amount in NPR

Particulars % 31 Ashadh 32 Ashadh
2 2081 2080
Net Profit during the year as per P/L account P/L 61,659,323 75,014,783
Minimum 1% to be appropriated for CSR as per NRB
1 750,14

to be expended next year of Net Profit 616,593 20,148
Additional fund appropriated to cover already
committed projects in CSR
Total fund appropriated in CSR fund during the year 616,593 750,148
Opening balance in CSR fund 427 2,033,699 1,718,262
Less: Expenses incurred during the year in CSR 437 (737,850) (434,711)
Add/Less: Fund Transferred during the year 121,257 315,437
Total balance outstanding in CSR fund as on 427 1,912,442 2,033,699
Ashadh End

Summary of amount expensed under the corporate social responsibility is presented
in table below.

a. Province wise expenses details

Province Amount (NPR)

Koshi Province 124,904
Bagmati Province 369,669
Gandaki Province 73914
Lumbini Province 89,499
Karnali Province 79,864
Province wise total 737,850

b. Sector wise expenses details

Particulars Amount (NPR)

ADSoN for sponsorship for Ability development program 25,000
Awareness Program on FM 81,360
Samata Education Trust - Contribution for Scholarship Program 50,000
Global Money Week — FM Adhyatma Jyoti Pvt. 2,825
J P Foundation - Contribution for old age care 5,760
Kalinchowak Bhagwati — Bin Distribution 8,000
Other Expenses Related To Financial Literacy Program 564,905
Total 737,850

5.14.2, Staff Skill Development Fund

The Bankisrequired toincur expenses towards employee training and development for
anamountthatis equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s salary and allowance.
Any shortfall amount in meeting this mandatory expense requirement in the current
year will have to be transferred to this reserve fund through appropriation of net profit
and the amount shall accumulate in the fund available for related expenses in the
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subsequent year. Balance in this fund is directly reclassified to retained earnings in
the subsequent year to the extent of expenses made for employees training related

activities.

Particulars Note 31 Ashadh 31 Ashadh
2081 2080

Opening Staff Skill Development Fund 1,789,997 1,057,508
Additions during the year (Minimum 3% to be
expended in staff training and development as 1,712,682 1,429,263
prescribed by NRB)
Total 3,502,679 2,486,771
Less: Expenses .|ncurred in staff training and 2106679 696,775
development during the year
Remaining Balance (Unspent) as on Ashad End 4.27 1,396,000 1,789,997

5.14.3. Regulatory Reserve

This is a non-free statutory reserve and is a requirement as prescribed in NRB

directive. In the transition to NFRS from previous GAAP the Company is required to

reclassify all amounts that are resultant of re-measurement adjustments and that are

recognized in retained earnings into this reserve heading. The amount reclassified to

this reserve includes:

* Re-measurement adjustments such as interest income recognized against interest
receivables,

* Difference in loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and
advance as per NFRS,

* Amount equals to deferred tax assets,
* Actual Loss recognized in other comprehensive income,
* Amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS.

Pursuant to the NRB Unified Directive no. 4/2080, regulatory reserve on Accrued
Interest Receivable and Non-Banking Asset have been considered after taking effect
of staff bonus and income tax.

Amount in NPR

Particular Fiscal Year
2078/79 2079/80 2080/81

Opening Balance of Regulatory Reserve 2,275,754 3,233,628 | 12,326,419
Add: Amount transferred during year from
retained earning
Interest Receivable 957,874 1,066,023 9,615,045
Short loan loss provision
Short provision for possible loss in investment
Short provision on NBA 7,477,848 1,721,790
Deferred Tax
Goodwill
Gain on Bargain Purchase
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Fiscal Year
2078/79 2079/80 2080/81
Actuarial Loss 548,919 (548,919)
Fair value loss recognized in OCI

Particular

Other (Fair value gain/unrealized gain
recognized in Profit or loss)

Less: Amount transferred to retained
earnings during the year

Accrued interest previously recognized as
income collected during the year

Actuarial Gain

Fair value loss on investment recognized as Fair
value through Profit or loss

Deferred Tax Reserve
Balance as on Ashadh end (Note 4.27) 3,233,628 | 12,326,419 | 23,114,335

5.14.4 Adjustmentin opening Retained Earnings

Balance of opening retained earnings has been adjusted by NPR 16,533,279 on account
of tax paid on bargain purchase gain on merger of the company during 2073/74 levied
vide Finance Act 2080.

5.15 Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per the carve out notice issued by ICAN, the Company has measured impairment loss on
loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NFRS 9.

Loans and advances to customers with significant value (Top 50 group exposure
and borrowers classified as Non-Performing as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive) are
assessed for individual impairment test. The recoverable value of loan is estimated on the
basis of realizable value of collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past experience of
the Company. Assets that are individually assessed and for which no impairment exists
are grouped with financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for impairment. The credit risk statistics for each group of the loan and advances
are determined by management prudently being based on the past experience. For the
purpose of collective assessment of impairment Company has categorized assets in to five
broad categories as follows:

1 |Term Loan

2 |Auto Loan

3 |Home Loan

4 | Personal Loan

5 |Short Term Loan

Sincethis provisionis mandatoryforapplicationtheimpairmentunder NFRS and impairment
under NRB norms has been disclosed for comparison.
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Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashadh 2081 | 31 Ashadh 2080
Individual impairment of loans and advances 15,884,369 26,104,936
Collective impairment of loans and advances 114,933,781 81,005,019
Total impairment allowance under NRB norms 130,818,150 107,109,955
Total impairment allowance under NFRS 26,863,801 31,058,966

5.16. Dividend Payable

Amount in NPR

Fiscal Year 31 Ashadh 2081 | 31 Ashadh 2080
FY2066/67 17,548 17,548
FY2067/68 49,411 49,411
FY2068/69 84,410 84,410
FY2069/70 1,496 1,496
FY 2070/71 89,955 89,955
Total 242,820 242,820

Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashadh 2081 | 31 Ashadh 2080
Not collected for more than 5 years 242,820 242,820
Not collected up to 5 years
Total 242,820 242,820

5.17 Weighted Average Interest Spread
Particulars Rate %
Average Rate of return on Interest Earning Assets i.e, Loan and Advances 14.65%
(including staff loans), investments in Fixed Deposits and Shares e
Average Cost of fund on Deposits, Borrowings, Debenture, Refinance and Inter 10.14%
Company borrowing S
Average Net Spread (Overall) 4.51%
5.18 Summary of Concentration Exposure as on 31 Ashadh 2081
Loans, Contingent
Particulars Advances & Deposits Liabiligies
Bills Purchased

Total amount as on 15/07/2024 (as per
NRB) (NPR) 5,605,078,510 7,373,425,075 82,872,006
Highest exposure to a single unit(group) 203,427,200 291,323,970 7.00,000
(NPR)
Pel:centage of exposure to single 3.59% 3.95% 0.84%
unit/total
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The Company measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the
equity shareholders for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average
number of shares for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Units | 31 Ashadh 31 Ashadh
2081 2080

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) NPR 61,659,323 75,014,783
Welghtgd averayge of r'1umber of equity shares used in 9,816,832 9,816,832
computing basic earnings per share (b)
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of NPR100 NPR 6.08 2 64
each (a/b)

As there are no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders,
basic EPS and diluted EPS are equal for the period presented.

5.20 Non-Banking Assets

The likely recovery of Non-Banking Assets amounting to NPR 701,250 is remote; therefore,
the NBA has been fully impaired since the First Time Adoption date of NFRS i.e., 15 July,

2017.
Party wise list of Non-Banking Assets as on 15 July 2024 is as under:
In NPR
Date of assumin As at 15 Jul As at 16 Jul
Name of Borrowers Non-Banking Assgts 2024 ¢ 2023 ¢

Kamal Khawas 13th July 2003 701,250 701,250
Shambhu Thapa 19th June 2008 - 300,000
Hungry Hunter & Cottage 23rd May 2023 5,160,000 5,160,000
Krishna Prasad Bhurtel 23rd May 2023 4,888,600 4,888,600
Anita Gyawali 16th July 2023 1,821,000 1,821,000
Purushottam Bhattarai 5th September 2023 2,733,000 -
Total 15,303,850 12,870,850
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5.21 Details of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total paid up share capital

S.N. Name of Shareholders No. :ZIS:are Percent Amount
Promoter Shareholders
1 |Sashi Raj Pandey 984,566 10.03 98,456,600
2 |Dinesh Raj Joshi 791,513 8.06 79,151,300
3 |Rabendra Raj Pandey 518,642 5.28 51,864,200
4 |Chandra Lekha Pandey 465,923 4.75 46,592,300
5 |Samson Jung Bahadur Rana 405,168 413 40,516,800
6 |Saurav Pant 307,169 3.13 30,716,900
7 |Govind Ballabh Bhatt 172,793 1.76 17,279,300
8 |Nirmal Nath Pandey 166,001 1.69 16,600,100
9 |Meeta Shah Rana 157,214 1.60 15,721,400
10 |Rajesh Kumar Agrawal 118,987 1.21 11,898,700
11 |Samaksha Nath Pant 111,130 1.13 11,113,000
12 |Sujan Pant 107,594 1.10 10,759,400
13 |Bimal Senchury 104,390 1.06 10,439,000
14 |Dharma Raj Shrestha 99,355 1.01 9,935,500
15 |Ambika Shah 96,960 0.99 9,696,000
16 |Rana Bahadur Shah 96,807 0.99 9,680,700
17 |Nawa Durga Trading Concern 89,288 0.91 8,928,800
18 |Jyoti Kumari Sarawagi 77,242 0.79 7,724,200
19 |Bishnu Prasad Upadhaya 64,960 0.66 6,496,000
20 |Adarsha Raj Pandey 53,360 0.54 5,336,000
21 |Sanjay Man Baisyat 51,443 0.52 5,144,300
Public Shareholders
22 |Cit- Citizen Unit Scheme 138,165 141 13,816,500
23 |Trishakti Jung Bahadur Rana 111,712 1.14 11,171,200
24 |Sabina Malla Shah 82,147 0.84 8,214,700
25 |Prudential Capital Management Company Pvt. Ltd 60,283 0.61 6,028,300
26 |Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Limited 51,200 0.52 5,120,000

5.22 Proposed Distributions (Dividends and Bonus Shares)

The Board of directors in its meeting dated December 3, 2024 has passed a resolution
recommending for distribution of bonus shares (stock dividend) at 1.8659% (approximate)
and cash dividend at 0.0982% (approximate for tax purpose) of paid -up capital as at
1.9641% (approximate).

Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashadh 2081 31 Ashadh 2080
Cash Dividend 964,042.11 49,575,002
Bonus Shares 18,316,800.00 -
Total 19,280,842.11 49,575,002

qoo | faut arffe ufdeeT j0co/0c?



%\ 8 Scac e UUS Bhigolcy . .

Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.
(AT W7 qpare T A SIS W )

5.23 Principal Indicators

Restated as per NFRS reporting
4
2 ~ o o o -
Particulars S = = = = =
5| g 8 8 8 8
£ © N ) o =)
N N N N ]
S 5 R S ]
1. Percent of Net Profit/Gross Income % 15.30 17.15 11.53 7.54 6.52
2. Earnings Per Share Rs. 13.50 12.86 9.48 7.64 6.28
3. Market Value per Share (as on Ashadh end) Rs.| 159.00| 489.00| 299.00| 375.00| 490.00
4. Price Earnings Ratio Times 11.78 38.03 31.53 49.07 78.01
5. Dividend (Bonus share and Cash) on share capital % 10.53 11.00 7.60 5.05| 1.9641
6. Cash Dividend on Share Capital % 3.16 3.30 5.20 5.05| 0.0982
7. Interest Income/Loans & Advances % 15.48 14.40 14.15 17.31 16.50
8. Staff Expenses (excluding staff bonus)/Total Operating Expenses % 62.59 62.72 58.00 58.43 58.34
9. Interest Expenses/Total Deposit and Borrowings % 8.97 7.19 8.69 11.11 10.03
10. Exchange Gain/Total Income % - - - - -
11. Staff (Statutory) Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses (excluding bonus) % 2439 23.46 19.80 15.80 13.17
12. Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 2.37 2.47 1.63 1.30 1.07
13. Total Credit/Deposit % 89.77 7391 84.67 82.09 74.64
14. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets % 1.76 1.57 1.35 1.48 1.39
15. Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weightage Assets
a. Core Capital % 18.69 23.62 19.07 19.58 18.38
b. Supplementary Capital % 0.77 1.23 1.14 1.17 1.15
c¢. Total Capital Fund % 19.46 24.85 20.21 20.75 19.53
16. Liquidity (CRR) % 0.28 0.44 0.45 0.37 041
17. Net Non-Performing Credit/Total Credit (as per NRB provision) % 0.67 0.89 0.60 1.05 2.86
18. Base Rate (For the month of Ashadh) % 11.08 9.02 11.96 12.94 10.99
19. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 4.81 4.93 4.71 4.59 4,51
20. Book Net worth Rs.| 11,576| 12,792| 13,346| 13,582| 13,435
21. Total Shares No. | 8,290,350 | 8,901,349 | 9,586,750 | 9,816,832 | 9,816,832
22. Total Employees No. 83 80 79 80 83
23. Book Value Per Share Rs. 140 144 139 138 137
24, ATM/CDM/CRM Terminals No. 0 0 0 0 0
25. POS Terminals No. 0 0 0 0 0
26. Branches No. 13 13 13 13 13
5.24.Disclosure of Actuarial Valuation for Leave and Gratuity
15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Particulars
Leave | Gratuity Total Leave | Gratuity Total
Expenses Recognized In Income Statement
Current service cost 972,564 | 1,904,554| 2,877,118 669,639 2,538,370| 3,208,009
Interest cost 836,087 | 3,867,536| 4,703,623 742,055| 3,391,350 4,133,405
Past Service Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets (3,580,640) | (3,580,640) (2,165,703) | (2,165,703)
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss (954,241)| (10,132,148) | (11,086,389) 642,155 784,170 1,426,325
Change in Present Value Obligations
PV of Obligation at beginning of the year 8,671,432 | 38,675,361 | 47,346,793 | 6,874,321 | 31,693,022 | 46,625,979
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15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Particulars
Leave | Gratuity Total Leave | Gratuity Total
Interest cost 836,087 3,867,536 4,703,623 742,055 3,391,350 5,003,940
Current Service Cost 972,564 1,904,554 2,877,118 669,639 2,538,370 2,914,487
Benefit paid (553,746) (967,034)| (1,520,780) (256,738) (155,322) | (17,797,812)
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss (954,241)| (11,254,134) | (12,208,375) 642,155 1,207,941 1,820,749
Liability at the end of the year 8,972,096 | 32,226,283 | 41,198,379 | 8,671,432 38,675,361| 38,567,343
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
FV of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year 34,127,204 | 34,127,204 -| 19,688,213 | 19,688,213
Adjustment to Opening Fair value of Plan 179,229
Asset
Interest Income - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - 3,580,640 3,580,640 - 2,165,703 2,165,703
Contribution by Employer - 3,966,967 3,966,967 - 12,004,839| 12,004,839
Benefit paid - (967,034) (967,034) - (155,322) (155,322)
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Plan Assets -1 (1,121,986) | (1,121,986) - 423,771 423,771
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year -| 39,765,020 | 39,765,020 -| 34,127,204 | 34,127,204
Amount Recognized in SOFP
Present Value of Obligations at Year End 8,972,096 | 32,226,283 | 41,198,379 6,874,321| 38,675,361 | 45,549,682
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End -| 39765020 39,765,020 -| 34,127,204| 34,127,204
Unfunded Status (8,972,096) 7,538,737 (1,433359)| (6,874321)| (4,548,157)| (11,422,478)
Unrecognised Acturial (Gain)/Loss at Year End -
Unrecognised Past Service Cost
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised in SOFP (8,972,096) | 7,538,737 | (1,433,359)| (6,874,321)| (4,548,157)]|(11,422,478)

Actuarial assumption

Actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan obligation is done on the basis of the following

assumption.
Particulars 31 Ashadh 2081 31 Ashadh 2080
Discount Rate 10% 10%
Salary Escalation Rate 7% 7%
Expected Return on Assets
Mortality Rate NALMT2009 NALMT2009
Withdrawal Rate 20-58
20-34 5% 5%
35-58 5% 5%
Sanshar Sharma Lilamani Neupane Sashi Raj Pandey FCA. Shashi Satyal

Head - Accounts/Finance Dept.

Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle
Director

Dinesh Raj Joshi
Director
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Chief Executive Officer

Mahesh Psd. Adhikari
Director

Mamata Adhikari
Director

Chairperson

Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga
Director

Adarsha Raj Pandey
Director

Partner
PKF TR Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements
Amount in NPR '000

- E E Variance
25 | =&
T = D
Statement of Financial Position E a § & I Reasons for Variance
> % < T!; " In %
g £ g £ amount
2£ | 2
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 455,742 565,651 109,909 24.12% | Reclassification of Treasury bills
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 358,667 358,667 - 0.00%
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - -
Derivative financial instruments. - - -
Other trading assets - - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 212,025 212,025 - 0.00%
Loans and advances to customers 5410,445| 5393,054| (17,392) -0.32%
Investment securities 2,426,481 | 2,316,572 | (109,909) -4.53% | Reclassification of Treasury bills
Current tax assets 1,144 3,376 2,232| 195.07% | Tax Impact
Investment in susidiaries - - -
Investment in associates - - -
Investment property 14,603 14,603 -10.00%
Property and equipment 137,857 152,691 14,835 10.76% | NFRS 16 adjustment on ROU
Goodwill and Intangible assets 2,695 2,695 0
Deferred tax assets - - -
Other assets 20,056 22,362 2,306 11.50% | NFRS 9 deferred employee Expenditure
Total Assets 9,039,715 | 9,041,696 1,981
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 44916 44916 - 0.00%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 186,875 186,875 - 0.00%
Derivative financial instruments - - -
Deposits from customers 7,373,425 7,373,425 (0) 0.00%
Borrowing - - -
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provisions - - -
Deferred tax liabilities 12,225 14,082 1,857 15.19% | Audit Adjustment
Other liabilities 80,851 78,877 (1,974) -2.44%
Debt securities issued - - -
Subordinated Liabilities - -
Total Liabilities 7,698,292 | 7,698,175 (117)
Equity
Share capital 981,683 | 981,683 - 0.00%
Share premium - - -
Retained earnings 23,826 23,712 (114) -0.48% | NFRS adjustments
Reserves 335913 | 338,126 2,212 0.66%
Total Equity Attributable To Equity Holders | 1,341,423 | 1,343,521 2,098
Total Liabilities And Equity 9,039,715 | 9,041,696 1,981
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Amount in NPR '000

c c Variance
T E £
58 A
3 8 =8
Statement of Profit or Loss g 3 In Reasons for Variance
S ® < s In %
5 S = g amount
a5 a s
2£ | 2&
Interest income 951,247 | 946,201 (5,046) -0.53% | Audit Adjustment
Interest expense 738,873 | 743,961 5,088 0.69%
Net interest income 212,373 | 202,239| (10,134) -4.77%
Fee and commission income 27,706 29,387 1,681 6.07% | Reclassification
Fee and commission expense 74 54 (19) -26.35% | Reclassification
Net fee and commission income 27,632 29,333 1,700 6.15%
Other operating income 6,800 4918 (1,882) -27.68% | Reclassification
Total operaing income 246,806 236,490| (10,316) -4.18%
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and 22,491 23,408 917 4.08%
other losses
Net operating income 224,314| 213,082| (11,232) -5.01%
Personnel expenses 74,822 73,487 (1,335) -1.78% | Acturial & Staff Loan prepaid adjustments
Depreciation 7,003 15,401 8,399| 119.93% | NFRS 16 adjustment on ROU
Other operating expenses 47,000 37,066 (9,934) -21.14% | NFRS 16 adjustment on ROU
Operating profit 95,489 87,127 (8,363) -8.76%
Non operating income/expense - - - 0.00%
Profit before tax 95,489 87,127 (8,363) -8.76%
Income tax 28,647 25,467 (3,179)|  -11.10% | Audit adjustment
Profit /(loss) for the period 66,843 61,659 (5,183) -7.75%
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